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COMPLAINT
Plaintiff Caldera. Inc.; (“Caldera™) brings this action against defenciant Microsoft
Corporation (“Microsoft") for damages and injunctive relief under the antitrust laws of the
United States, and for damages in tort, and demands trial by jury, complaining and alleging as ,. |
follows: | |

I.  NATURE OF CASE.

1. This action chal‘lenges'.illegal conduct by Mi;ro_soft calculated and _iptended to
prevent and destroy competition in the computer software industry. As the Unitéd States.
Department of Justice alleged in United S(ates Vs. Micro_sofr,:Civil No. 94-1564 (D.D.C., |
Complaint ﬁledjuly 15, 1994), Microsoft has violated Sections 1 and 2 of the Sherman Act, 151 .
U.S.C. §§ 1 and 2. As outlined in the Justi;:e Department’s complaint, through ya;ious unfair

' énd predatory acts, Microsoft has willfully maintained a moﬁopoly of the market for MS-DOS _
opefating system software aﬁd funcétiorx_al'ly- equivalent softwéi"c (the ;‘DOS Marl_(et”)'. (Fo; _
purposes of this complaint, MS-DOS énd éompet_iri_g functicnéily—equiyalent operating system

| softwa?e will be referred to as “DOS Software.”) Such software is désigned to run on personal
'corhputers using Intel x86 or Inte] x86-compatible mi<c;opro'cessofs (“PCs”). The Intel x86> class
of micrdprbcessors includes Intel 286, 386, 486, Pentium and Pentium Pro micropro_cessors, as
well as microérocessors manufactured by other companies that ﬁse a substantially Similar
architecture anvd instruction set.

2 Microsoft has erected artificial barriers to the entry and growth of competing

operating systems vendors through its contractual relations with original equipment
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manufacturers ‘(OEMS) of PCs and other predatory conduct. which have had the effect of
excluding competitors from the DOS Market, a market in which- Microsoft has monopoly power.
.Thebse practices have included the following:

(a) License agreements which required OEMs to pay royaltiés to Microsoft
not only when they sold PCS containing Microsoft's MS-DOS, but also when they sold PCs
containing cornpéting DOS Software or no DOS Softwar¢ ("per processor licenses"):

(b)  Unreasonably long terms for liceﬁse agreements with OEMs for the use of
Microsoft's MS-DOS softwére;

(c) In lieu of énd in addition to per processor licenses, pricing schemes and

other license terms énd enforcement practices thaf effecfively have required OEMs to purchase |
- , : their entire DOS Software féquirements from Microsoft; |

(d) Tying arrangements und.er which Microsoft required OEM:s to burchésé
MS-DOS to the exclusion of competihg DOS Softwa;e prbducts, in particular DR DQS and :
Novell DOS, in order to obtain its Windows software programs or to be given access to 6ther
essehtiél informa_tion, product suiaport aﬁd serviée; |

(e) False public statements by Microsoft executives, and Windows error

' messages, which have misled the market as to possible incompatibility probléms between
Microsoft's Windows software programs and non-Microsoft DOS Soft\ya-re., in particular DR

DOS and Novell DOS; and
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(), False public statements by Microsoft executives concerning futare product
features and anticipatedshipm.ent dates, known in the industry as “vaporware.” timed to match
announcements or releases of new versions of competing DOS Software. in particular DR DOS
and Novell DOS.-

These practices have had the purpose and effect of freezing out competing DOS Software
products. in particular DR DOS and Novell DOS. and thereby entrenching Microsoft as the
dominant provider of DOS Software. |

3. - Microsoft's conduct has had a direct, substantial and adverse effect on competition
by raising barriers to entry to corﬁpeting DOS Software, foreclosing competition with Microsoft
on the basis of price and performance, and étiﬂing innovation. Buyers of PCs and software ha_ve

= ‘ ' thus been forced to pay higher prices for less innovative, inferior products.

4. Caldera, has acquired from Novell, Inc. (.“Novell”), its DR DOS- and Novell

- DOS-related assets, including thié claim (thé “DR DOS Business”); pursuant to an Asset
‘Purchase Agreement dated July 23, 1596._. (For simplicity’s sake, DR DOS and Novell DOS are
referred to generically herein as “DR DOS.™) -Caldéra 1s therefore entitled to recover damages
from Microsoft for its anticompetitive and illegal conduct. Moreover, unless restrained by order
of this court. Micrbsoﬂ Will per-r.nanently destroy competition in the DOS Market in the |
microcomputer software industry, and Caldera- will be artificially and illegally prevented from

realizing the full financial potential of the DOS Business.
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5 The United States District Court for the District of Columbia entered a Final
Judgment in United States v. Microsoft on August 21, ] 995. which ban_ed_certain of Microsofi’s
anticompetitive practices, including per processor ljéenses. licences exceeding one year in l.c:ngth.
licenses prohibiting or restricting OEMs from licensing or distributing non-Microsoft operating
systems, license égreements conditioning an OEM’s license 6f bone MicrosoftAoperating system
product upon the license of aﬁother‘ Microsoft product or upon the OEM not licensing a non-
Microsoft product, minimum commitment licenses, and licenses requiring royalty paymenté to
Microsoft othe;r than on a pEr-co_py or per-system Basis. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 16(i). the stamfe
of limitations has been suspended as a result of Unired States v. Microsoft. |
IL THE PARTIES.

oo . 6. Plaintiff Caldera is a Utah corporation. Caldera’s prihcipal place of business is
located at 633 South 550 East, Provo, Utah 84606. Caldera develops, markets, sells, licenses and
serviqes software used with PCs. |

7. Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement with Novell, Caldera is in the business
of developing‘ marketing, s:lli-ng3 li‘ce'nsin-g and servicing DR DOS products. Caldera competes
with Microsoft in the sale, distribution and support of DOS Software #nd other software products-
vi.a the I}nternc‘:t, as well as through traditional OEM, distributor, retailer and value-addea reseller
channels.

8. | Defendant Microsoft is a Delaware corporation. Microsott's principai place of

~ business is iocated at One Microsoft Way. Redmond, Washington, 98052.
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9. M.icro_soft is the world's largest independent software company with fiscal- 1996
sales totéling $8.67 billion. Microsoft's net income reached $2.j0 billion in 1996. up from
$1.453 billion the prior year, an increase of 52%. Over the last 5 years. Microsoft's aﬂ.'erage
annual growth rate has been 33%. Operating system sales increased 53% during ﬁsc;l vear 1996
over ﬁsﬁal year 1995. |

10.  The Microsoft products chiefly at issue here are MS-DOS, which runs on the Intel
x86 class of microprocessors, and Windows, a graphical us'er.interface (GUI), which runs on top |
of MS-DOS and other DOS Software.

III.  JURISDICTION AND VENUE.

11. This Court has juriéciiction over this matter pursuant to Section 4 of the Sherman -

T Act. 15 US.C. §_4; Sections 4 and 16 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 15 and 26, and 28 Us.c.
§§ 1331, 1337 and 1367, | |

12

-Ve.nge 1s proper in this district under 15 U.S.C. §§ 15, 22 and 26, and under 28
U..SY.C . § 1391(b) and (c) beéause ) defgndént Microsoft transa;:ts busiﬁesé and is found within
this district. (i) plaintiff's principal place. of business is within this district, and (ii1) a substantial
ponidn of the events giving rise to the claim heréin occurred within this district.

Iv. PERSONAL COMPUTER TECHNOLOGY AND THE PERSONAL COMPUTER
INDUSTRY. -

A. introduction of the PC.
13, IBM was among the first United States companies to introduce microcomputers

for p.ersonal use. IBM introduced the IBM personal computer in 1981. It was quickly dubbed the

1
n
'
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"PC." a term now used (in this Complaint and generally) to refer to anv personal computer that is
[BM-compatible. whether manufactured by IBM or not. i.c.,-personal computers that use Intel

x86-class microprocessors.

‘14.  The components of a PC are the hardware (which includes the microprocessor. the
memory and the disk drive), soﬂWare ‘(which includes the operéting system, other low level
progrérns, and various applications programs), and peripheréls (which iﬁclude the display screen.
keyboara and priﬁter).

15. IBM‘S hardware architecmre design was based on a microprocessor chip designed

and manufactured by Intel. So-called "clone" PC manufacturers also utilize Intel x86-class

MiCroprocessors.
~- i 16.  The dominant operating system on Intel x86-class microprocessors is Microsoft's
MS-DOS.

B. _The Importance of the Operating System Sof?ware.

1'7. The software on a PC',can -bc-dividgd intb three basic categories: operating system .
“software (e. g MS-DOS), graphical user interface .(GUI') software and applications softwa.re.:

18.  Applications software éives the PC its functionality gnd .COns@er utility.
Application ébftware provides the PC with instructions for thé performance of tasks selecfed by
the user. Primary examples of application software are word processing, spreadsheet, and |

database programs.
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19. The operating system controls the basic functibns of: the PC and facilitates
interaction between application‘programs and hardware. Operating system software performs the
following functions:

(a) controlling the allocation and usage of computer hardware components
such as central processing unit, memory, dis_k space and peripheral devices;

(b) facilitating the execution of applicatioﬁs software by résponding fo
requests or "calls" made by the application programs during their operation that yequi‘re various
hardware components to perform particular functions; -

(c) managing the flow of data and communication among various PC

~ components. "

-3 ' - 20.  The operating system constitutes the critical layer of software in every PC. All -
othgr software programs installed by a PC user must work with, and therefore be compatible
with, the particular operating system running on the PC.

21. | In writing applications for a particular operating systém, applications developers
refer 10 a set of ground rules for that operating system, known as the Applicaﬁon Prbgramming
Interfaces (or APIs). APIs tell the application developer what the operating system will_ doin
response o a defined set of réq1.1ests or "calls." Aslong as an application.is writteﬁ in accordance
wifch the rules set by the API, the application will run with a given operating system.

22, Particular operating systems can only work with a certain type of microprocessor.

_ For example. MS-DOS will operate only on PCs, i.e., machines that contain Intel x86-class -

,-7-
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microprocessors. MS-DOS will not run on machines manufactured by Apple Cornp\-itcr_. which
operate on a non-Intel microprocessor pla‘tfonn. _

C. The Emergence of Graphical User Interfaces ("GUIs").

23. | MS-DOS i_s‘chara.cter-based. i.e., most of the visual displays generated bv MS-

. DOS' are limited to blinking cursors, letters and numbers‘.‘ To have the computer perform certain
tasks -- such as opening ane;zv file -- the user must issue instructions by typing in the correct
sequence of letters and numbers or by using rudimentary mouse functions.

24, Graphical user interface or GUI screen displays iﬁclude icons or symbols to -
represent programs, functions or infor;hation. A GUI, together with a "mouse" pointing device.
allows the user to inst.ruct the computer to pe&form specific functions by'.mcrely pointing to and

et “clicking" on c'ertai_r; graphical images, symbols o; words.

25. In 1985, Microsoft introduced it_s GUI software, called Windowsv.-_

26. 'Althbugh'sometime_s referred‘ to as an operating system, all Qersior_is of -Windows;
eXcluding Windows NT and Windqwé 95, interface with and "'I:un on top of" DYOS‘ Software.

: Windows‘adds a GUI interface between DOS and the user. Windows takes advantage éf more
sophisticated microprocesso;s and .iﬁéreased memory capacity to generate complex visual
disﬁlayg.as part of its graphical user interface.

D, Software Distribution Channels.

27.  The cﬁs-tomer base for DOS Software coﬁsists primérily of PC mal{ufacturers, ie.,

OEMs. This is commonly referred to as the OEM channel. DOS Software is also sold-at retail,
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primarily aé an upgrade. Because virtually all PCs are sold with operating system software
installed, however, there is little opportunity for vendors of DOS Software to make significant
sales in retai] channels. Hence, by controlling the OEM channel. Microsoﬁ 1s able to control
distribution.

28. OEM licenses for DOS Software (and also Windows software products) typically
permit the OEM. through the use of a "golden master" diskette supplied by the software
developer (such as Microsoft), to reproduce and install thé software on each PC. By contrast,
applications programs are generally manufactured onto separate disks and sold in boxes through

retail channels.

A MICROSOFTJ‘S GROWTH AND DOMINATION. )
Tt , | 29 In 1'98'1 , IBM contracted with Micfosoft to des_ign and develop the opefating
' system software for the IBM PC. Since 1t had practically no backgrouﬁd in operating'sy‘st.ems,
Micr’oséft entered into 'an arrangement with a company known as Seattle Computer Products
. (SCP) to acquire rights to a program under development by SCP known ‘as "QDOS"‘fér Quick -
and Dirty Operating Systefn. | | |
30. QDOS bonfo;ved heaA\‘/ily from an operaﬁng syéter_n developed by Digital Reéearch,
Inc. .(“DRIT’) called CP/M. | | “
31.  Microsoft changed the name of QDOS to MS-DOS, for Microsoft-Disk Operaﬁng‘
System. Under its arrangement with IBM, Microsbft r'etained the right to liccnée MS-DOS to

.other PC manufacturers. IBM called its version of the product PC DOS.
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32, MS-DOS was originally designed to run on the Intel 8088 microprocessor.
" Microsoft has introduced several versions of MS-DOS since 1981'. which have run on the Intel
x86 class of microprocessors. |
33.  Because Microsoft distributes MS-DOS (and Windows) predominantly through
'ﬁhe OEM channel, its costs of sale are minimal. Once Microsoft delivers a master copy of a disk
containing tﬁe MS-DOS (or Windows) program to a given OEM, it incurs little or no additional
costs of sale. OEMs, on the other hand, must copy and package disks, prepare product literature.
and ship product to customers.
34. By the mid-1980's, MS-DOS had becorﬁe entrenched as the standard in the DOS
Market, generating miillions of dollars of .reven'ues to Microsoft. Not smp-risingly., in view of - v
st - Microsoft's rnonopély_ power and the absence of competition, the price of MS-DOS in'the OEM
éhaﬁnel escglated from .$2-$5 per copy in the 1981-1982 periéd to $25—$28 per copy by 1988.
35. At the same time, for much of the 1980s, Microsoft did almost nothing to-improve |
MS-DQ_S. Microsoﬁ released MS-DOS 3.0 in Aug-us.t»l984, but did noﬁ release MS-DOS 4.0-.
until June 1988. a month after DRI released ,DR DOS 3.31. Microsoft did not issue an‘im'proved'
* release until June 1991; when MS-DOS 5.0 appeared in respoﬁse to DR DOS 5.0 (which‘\}zvas,

released in April 1990).

-10-
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VI THE DR DOS CHALLENGE.
36.  Microsoft's inaction was remarkable given that improvements in hardware
~ technology and applications software had created a demand among PC user\s for an enhanced
operating sys;em. By 1987, users were .seeking:
(a) ’ The ability to support larger disk drives. Although larger hard disks were
- becoming available, Microsoft dici nothing to improve MS-DOS so that it could support such
- hard disks until Compaq developed its own version of MS-DOS with .sucgh functionality. |
(b). Improved memory mana.gement. Micros’gﬁ did nothing to improve memory
management so that larger applications programs (such és popular desktop pu-blishihg -
a‘pplicétions) could run on a computer With relaﬁvely limited meﬁaory.
(c) | Loading the operating system on a ROM chip. Even though it had become
' , technoldgiﬁ:aliy feasible to install certain portiors of 6perating systems on a "read lonly memory"
| (ROM) chip, a feature that Would improve the function of the program, Microsoft did ho&ﬁng to
create a "ROM-zble’ version of MS-DOS. |
(d) Improvéd user interface. MS-DOS required users to master rather arcane
programm'irig commands in érder to perform various operations. Microsoft failed to make its
any "hel

commands more user-friendly or to provide any "help" screen £

determine which commands they should execute.

-11-
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37.  Because of these deficiencies. a number of OEMs approached DRI and requested
that it develop a version of DOS that would fill the gaps in functionality that plagued MS-DOS.
At the sarne time, there were a number of OE’MS who simply could not get Microsoft to deal with
them (irrespective of product features). Many of these OEMs indicated to DRI that they would
be seriously interested in an alternative DOS Software product. - Accordingly, in 1987 DRI began -
planning for a new version of DOS, to be called DR DOS.

37. DRI designed DR DOS to be the funcfional equivalent of MS-DOS. i.e., to
support the same API set. DRI was able to accomplish this largely because of its experience in

* the development of CP/M, from whieh QDOS and MS-DOS derived.

38. The result of DRI's initial development effort was a product designated as DR
f"'."_i ' DO_SJS.SI, introduced on May 28, 1988. DR DOS 3.31 was followed quickly by enhanced

versions of the product. Thus DR DOS SO introduced in May 1990, and DR DOS 6.0,
intfoduced in September 1991, were signiﬁcanﬁy superior to then-existing versions of MS-DOS
in many areas, including (a) memory management, (b) a ROM-able core of the'operating systemn,
(c) ﬁser-frie'ndly commands and on-screen help resources, (d) a graphical user interface optiqn,

» (e) extended disk commands, (f) passworei protection, and (g) the ability to store twice as much
information en a hard disk through disk eorﬁpression technology.

39.  Industry experts responded enthusiastically to DR DOS. DR DOS 5.0 received

| several awards including the 1990 BYTE Award of Distinction and Finalist in the 1990 PC

- Magazine Award for Technical Excellence. DR DOS 6.0 similarly received a number of
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~ industry awarcis. including the 1991 BYTE Award of Excellence. BEST of COMDEX (Fall
1‘991 ). and the Infoworld Buyers Assﬁrance Seal.

40.  The technical superiority of DR DOS resulted iﬁ a rise in sales from about $13
million in fiscal year 1990 to $30 million in fiscal year 1991. notwithstanding Microsoft's
anticompetitve conduct. DR DOS sbld well in the retail distribution channel. but due to
Microsoft’s exclusive dealings and other predatory conduct, it-was largely locked out of the
OEM channel. |
"VII. MICROSOFT'S PREDATOR\./ RESPONSE TO DR DOS.

41. Microsoft refused to tolerate this PCs to its monopoly position in the DOS Market

’ for at least two (to Microsoft) éompelling reas.,ons:‘ (i) Microsoft's DOS Mafket monopoly
-~ enabléd 1t to control the standards or APIs to thch all applications for IBM-cOr;ipatible PCs had
to be written;b and (ii) MS-DOSlenabled Microsovft to collect enormous amounts of money from
its license of MS-DOS at negligible Qngoing_cost or risk. |

42. DR DOS posed a péafiéulmly si gniﬁ;ant threat to Microsoft because (i) it was
compatible With appli_c_z'ition‘s written for MS-DOS; and (ii) since both DR DOS and MS-DOS
were technélogical SUCCessOrs to‘ .CP/M, Microsoft c‘ould not claim that DR DOS infringed upon
any proprietéry technology it .owned. |

| 43, Microsofi's principal defense against any competitive threat, including DR DOS,
was .the wall of "per processbr" licenses that it 'had begun to construct in 1988, the year that DR

~. DOS was first released to the market. Under per processor licenses, OEMs were required to pay
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Microsoft a rovalty on every PC they sold regardless of whether it conrailjed Microsoft’s MS--
DOS, some other software developer’s DOS Software. or no operating system software. This
royalty system effectively imposed a tax in favor of Micro.soft whenever an OEM sold a PC
equipped with any Qpe_rating system othef than MS-DOS. Given the razor-thin margins von the
sale of PCs, this royalty scheme caused OEMs to shipAMS-DOS exclusively.

44.  Microsoft compounded this per processor licensing scheme by insisting on long-
term licenées of MS-DOS from its OEM customers, contracts that tended to be longer than

: typieal product cycles. Microsoft also obtained large "take or pay" minimum commitment |
licenses that also effectively foreclosed the ability of competitors such as Novell to sell
competing DOS Software products to OEMS. and engaged in other licensing practices that had

- = the effect of coefcing OEMs to deal exclusively with Mie;osoﬁ.

45.  Microsoft responded to DR DOS 5.0-by einnouncing in May 1990 btvhat it ’irAltendedv ‘

to issue a new release of MS-DOS, to be called MS-DOS 5.0, that would mirror the technical
advantages already present in DR DOS 50 Micfo'soft indicated that the new release of MS-
DOS would be available within a few months. Industry experience.indica"ces that it would have
beerni near impossible for Microsoft to develop and release a commercial version of its product
matching the features of DR DOS-5.0 within that period. Nonetheless, Micresbft _re_peated this

‘vapon?are announcement throughoﬁ the summer and into the fall 0f 1990, In fact, MS-DOS 5.0
was not reieased untl June 1991 and. when finally released, it did not offer the features -

Microsoft had promised.

-14 -
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46. On July 17. 1991, DRI. finding it difficult to compete in the face of Microsoft's
onslaught. announced its agreemént to be acquired by Novell. The merger was completed'
October 28. 1991. With the financial. research and development. and marketing support of
Novell, DR DOS could have obtained a significant share of the DOS Market. but for Microsoft's
anticompetitive conduct.

47.  Inthe fall of 1991, Microsoft announced to the market that DR DOS would not be
compatible with the next release of Windows known as Windows 3.1, scheduled for release in
April 1992, The market perceived that it was critical for an operating systerr; to suppbﬁ
Windows; therefore Microsoft's statements that DR DOS could not do so substantially undercut
Novell's efforts to pcnetrafe the DOS Market.

‘“‘ 48.  To reinforce the impression that DR DOS would be incompatible with Windows
3.1, beginning in December of 1991, Microsoft released beta versions of Windows 3.1
containing code that generated error messages when .Windows 3.1 ran on top of DR DOS fathgr v
than MS-DOS. Microsoft created these error messages solely for the purpose of creating fhe
impression that DR DOS would be inéompatible with Windows in order to dissuade customers _
from' purchasing DR DOS.

| 49, Even though the Windows 3.1 beta releas¢ was at that time the largest such
re}eése in history, Microsoft refused to provide a Windows' 3.1 beta to Navell. ‘Microsoft’s -
- refusal to-do so was another predatory effort to impede Novell’s abilify to test DR DOS with

Windows 3.1 and thereby hamper Novell’s ability to offer a Windows 3.1-compatible release of
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DR DOS to the market. In fact. when Windows 3.1 was finally released to the market. Novel!
was able 1o release an enhanced version of DR DOS supporting Windpws 3.1 without substantial
technical difficulty.
| 50.  Microsoft also informed certain OEM PC manufacturers that they could not
obtain Windows or be given access to essential information, prod.pct support and service if they
did not purchase and shib MS-DOS, to the exclusion of DR DOS.

51. Similarly, Mjérosoft estab‘lished a pricing structure for Windows that made it
prohibitive to buy that product in the absence of MS—DOS.i For example, certain Korean dEMs
were informed that the price of Windows without MS-DOS would be double the price of
Windows with MS-DOS.

— | - 52, Microsoft's most devastating tactic, however, was its massive expansion of p_ér
" processor licenses in the OEM channel. F ollowing the announcement of Novdlfs acquisition of
DRI, Microsoft subst.antially stepped up its efforts to coerce OEMs to enter intolper processor
licenses or comparably gxclusidhary MS-DOS licenses. Thereafter, Novell’s sales force found -
the OEM channel virtually impenetrable: they were thwarted in account b’y account by
Microsoft's per-processor license v;'all.'

533.  Thecombined effect of Microsoft's anticompetitive practices on DR DOS was

th

saa

S million in the first

devastating. DR DOS sales plummeted during fiscal year 1992, totaling $13.

quarter, $13.7 million in the second quarter, $6.9 million in the third quarter, and $1.4 million in

- the fourth quarter (which ended October 31. 1992).

- 16-
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54. Microsoft continued with its predatory practices throughout 19@52 and up to the
present day. Microsoft has employed another tactic for locking OEMs exclusively to MS-DOS.
namely, "cliff pricing" through which a commercially;reasonable price is provided to OEMs if
and only if they commit to obtéin all of their requirements for operating system software from
Microsoft.

55. Although various governmental agencies including the United States Department
of Justice have sought to bar certain of Microsoft's predatory practices such as Fhe per proc.essor
license, Microsoft has been bermitted to employ its "cliff pricing" practice with impunit)?.

56. Novell introduced its final version of the product, Novell DOS 7.0, in the summer
of 1995. In September 1994, as a result of Microsoft's predatory and anticompetitive conduct

=g | described herein, Novell announced that it wouléi cease the marketing and development of DR
DOS.
VIIL. RELEVANT MARKETS.
| 57. Th_ere are tw§ relevant produ;t markgts: (i) the DOS Market; and (1i) the market
for graphicai uéer interfaces that run on top of DOS Software (the “GUI Market™).

38. The felevam geographic market is-the United Stafes. Microsoft sells and licenses
MS-DOS throughout the United States. Thé major developers of other DOS Software are

" exclusively U.S. companies.

59. Microsoft has monopoly power in the DOS Market and the GUI Market. In fact,

- according to the Justice Department’s complaint. “Microsoft has monopoly power in the relevant

-17-

CONFIDENTIAL . | 'NOV00125457



- market and has had monopoly p.o{:ver since at least the mid-1980s. For almost a decade
Microsoft has retained an extremely high market share -- consistently in excess of 70%."
Microsoft's MS-DOS Iand Windows are the de facto Soﬁware standards for the Intel x86 class of
MICrOprocessors.

60. Microsoft's con;crol of MS-DOS and Windows standards for Iﬁi_el x86-class
microprocessors provides it with several significant advantages over competitors. including the

following:

(a) Because of Microsbft‘s large installed base,'fpr comp.eting"DOS SoﬂWare
‘products to have any chance of commercial success, they must provide tﬁe functionality of
Microsoft's MS-DOS so that they can support graphical user interfaces and applications written
.%-- -1 | for MS-DOS;
(b) Because Microsoft has early access to its own MS—DOS and Windows
APIs, it can develop and deliver co-rnplerhentary products to market more éuickly than
competitors whose complémeﬁtary software products must be compatibie with Microsoft'é
: prdducts; |
(c) By changing APIs, Vor‘refusing to ‘suppbrt certain APIs in hewer versions
of its MS-DOS and Windows products, Microsoft can render competitors' complementary
products technologically incompatible; and
(d)  Microsoft has power over OEMs, such that they can influence OEMs’

decisions whether to purchase software products offered by Microsoft competitors.

-18 -
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As a result of these and other advantages, Microsoft holds and has exercised power to

exclude competitors and increase prices in the DOS Market and the GUI Markets.
FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
.MONOPOLIZATION OF DOS MARKET
(Violation of Sherman Act, Section 2)

61. Caldera incorporates by reference and realleges the averments of 9 1-60 as if
fully set forth herein.

62. Micros;oft has monopolized the DOS Market in violation of § 2 of the Sﬁerman
Act. There is no legitir_naté bﬁsiness justification or purpose for Microsoft's conduct. Microsoft
has not used the least restrictive means for achieving its business objectives.

63. The aforesaid conduct of defendant Microsqft has produced a;id_. unless restrained

R h by Order of this Court, will continue to produce the following anticompetitive effects, among
others:

(a) Competition in the manufacture, sale and distribution Qf operating system
software, particularly DOS Software, has been unreasonably restrained and eliminated, and has
been monopolized by defendant Microsoft;

(b) Competition with defendant Microsoft in the DOS Market, including
competition by Novell and Caldera, has been or will be eliminated,; |

(c) Barriers to entry in the DOS Market have been raised to a virtually

insurmountable level, thereby assuring continued unlawful maintenance of Microsoft's monopoly
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and Microsoft's ability 1o exercise its monopoly power to control prices and eliminate
compet.ition; and_
(d) Innovation and the development of new and more efficient operating
system software has been retarded and is in danger of ceasing.
64. As a direct and proximate result of the predatory acts and practices alleged above,
the DR DOS Business, which plaintiff Caldera has acquired, 1s being and will continue to be

immediately and irreparably injured through the following:

(2) The loss of profits that otherwise would have been earned from the sale of

DR DOS and related PC operating system software;

(b) The loss of sales of DR DOS and related PC operating system software

““ that otherwise would have been made;

(c) The loss of market presence for DR DO‘S, as well as the loss of market
~share that might otherwise have been achieved in a freely competitive market;
(d)  The subsiantial reduction in the valué of the DR DOS Business assets;
(e) | The loss of good will in the DR DOS Business as a going concern; and
(f) The loss to the DR DOS Business of ékilled engineering, product
deve‘lo’pmem and marketing personnel and the erosion of its sales and service organization.
65.  The precise amount of damages that Caldera is entitled to recover as a result of

the foregoing injuries-to the DOS Business has not yet been ascertained.
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66.  In addition. defendant Micrésoft‘s monopolizaticn of the DOS Market is an
ongoing wrong causing the DR DOS Business incalculable and irreparable injury for which there
is no adequate remedy at 1aW. Unless defendant Microsoft is restrained by an appropriate Order
of this-Court, Caldera will be unable to compete fully ana fairly in the DOS Market.

SECOND CLAIM F OR RELIEF
ILLEGAL TYING
(Violation of Sherman Act, Section 1)

67.  Caldera incorporates by reference and realleges each and every allegat_ion
contained 1n { 1-66 as if fully set forth herein. |

68. Microsoft has coerced OEMs to enter into unreasonable and anticompetitive tying
arrangements in the form of licenses to MS-DOS. Ip furtherance of its illegal tying

T arrangements,.MicrOSOft engaged in the following conduct, among other things:i
(a) Demanded that OEMs license MS-DOS in order to obtain a license to
Wihdows;

(b) Set royalty rates on unbundled Windows licenses, Le., licenses to use

Windows_ on}y_withoqt a licensé to MS-DOS, su?h that thg only,viable. economic opﬁoﬁ for
- OEMs was to license bo.'th MS-DOS (the tied product) and Windows (the tyingj‘jroduct) frorh
- ‘Microsoft; | | |
(c) Conditioned access to the Windows product as well as critical tecbmcél
information, product support and service for both MS-DOS and Windows on the purchase of

MS-DOS to the exclusion of DR DOS: and
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(d)  Tied MS-DOS and Windows technologically by» deliberately creating
technological incompatibilities offering no technical benefit solely for the purpose of creating the
impression that DR DOS was incompatible with Windows.

69.  Many OEMs did not and do not wish to license MS-DOS from Microsoft on the
terms imposed and many users would have preferred to run DR DOS with Windows but for the
fears of incompatibility created by Microsoft.

70.  Microsoft has appreciable market power in the GUI Market due to, among other
things, (i) its dominant rharket share; (i1) its copyrighted Windows product; and (iii) itsl unique
MS-DOS-compatible graphical user interface. |

71. Novell competed with Microsoft in attempting to license its DR DOS operating

=t ' ‘system to OEMs and in attempting to license DR DOS directly to end users at retail. Asa dirgct
result _of Microsoft’s tying arrangements as described above, Novell and other competitors were
foreclosed from selling DOS Software to a substantial portion of the market.

72.  Microsoft's illegal tie-ins have resulted in actual substantial foreclosure of DR
DOS from the DOS Market. Competition in the DOS Market has been reduced because of
‘Microsoft's anticompetitive conduct. |

73. Microsoft's tying arrangements constitute contracté in unreasonable restraint of
trade in or affecting a substantial volume of interstate commerce in violation of Section 1 of the

S el

Sherman Act, 15 US.C. §1. -

M

—
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74.  The DR DOS Business. now owned by Caldera. suffered injury by reason of these

acts. The precise amount of damages has not vet been ascertained.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
EXCLUSIVE DEALING .
(Violation of Sherman Act, Section 1)

75. Caldera incorpdrates by referéncc and realleges the averments of § 1-74 as if
fully set forth herein. |

76. Microsoft has coerced OEMs to enter into long-term exclusive degling
arrangements for MS-DOS. These exclusive dealing contracts have taker; the form of per-
processor licenses, cliff pricing, volume discounts, coercive royalty schedules and other licensing
terms apd practices having the purpose and the practical effeét of forcing OEMs to purchase all
of their DOS Software réquirements from a single seller -- Microsoft.

77. The effect of Microsoft's exclusive dealing arrangements was t0 effectively
foreclose a substantial number of prospective customers, particularly OEMs, from purchasing
DR DOS. OEMs §vho would like to ha\j/e licensed DR DOS have been precluded frorh doing so
by their per processor and other eXclusivew licenses with Microsoft. | |

78.  The actual and pfobable effect of Microsoft's exclusive dealing arrangements has
been to raise prices above the competitive level énd substantially lessen cdmpetition in the DOS
Market. Microsoft possesses monopély power and has used and, continues to use, exclusive

dealing arrangements with OEMs to raise barriers to entry and foreclose actual and potential

~ competition.
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79.  Thereisno le—gitimate business justification for Microsoft's exclusive deqling
arrangements.
80.  The above-described exclusive dealing arrahgemcnts imposed by Microsoft
- constitute contracts in unreasonable restraint of trade in or affecting a substantial volume of
interstate commerce in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1.
81. Caldera’s DOS Business has been injured by reason of these acts. The precise

amount of damages has not yet been ascertained.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE WITH ECONOMIC RELATIONS

82. Caldera incorporateg by reference and realleges the averments of ] 1-81 as 1f
fully set forth herein

83. Microsoft, through various improper means as alleged above, has willfully and -
intenfcionally‘ soﬁght to damage Novell’s and DRI’s existing and prospective business relations.
Microsoft, through various false statements, cover-ups, _enc;ypted code, and other fraudulent and
deceptive means, has sought to conceal the true na‘tcure' and extent of sﬁch conduct, thus tolling
any applicable statute of limitations.

8{1. Microsoft was and is malicioﬁsly motivated and knew, or in the exercise‘of
reasonable care should have known, that its actions would damage and continue to damége the
DR DOS Business and existing and prospéctive contractual relatidns with DR DOS custorﬁers,

and has acted in conscious disregard of this effect.
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85.  Asa proximate result of this intentional interference by Microsoft. the DR DOS
Business has suffered special damages in the form of lost sales and profits. Caldera. having
acquired the DR DOS Business from Novell, is entitled to recover such damages from Microsoft.
the amount of which has not yet been ascertained.

86. Caldera, aue to Microsoft’s willful, malicious and intentionally fraudulent
conduct, manifesting a knowing and reckless indifference to, or a reckless di_sregard of. DRI's

- and Novell’s rights, is entitled to an award of punitive damages in sufficient amount to dissuade

Microsoft from similar future conduct.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

1. For compensatory damages in an amount to be proven at trial.
ey 2. For an order trebling the amount of compensatory damages awarded pursuant to

Section 4 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 15.

3. Foranaward of pﬁni_tive damages.

4. For an ordef granting permanent injunctive relief ref;uiring that dgfendant
Microso’ﬁ hereiﬁaﬁer refrain from the use of per processor licenses on MS-DOS or anj other
oﬁerating system software that is competitive ﬁth, .or an intended replacement for, DOS
Software, including Windows 95 and Windows NT.‘

5. For an order

Microsoft hereinatter refrain from licensing practices and pricing policies which have the

.purpose and effect of causing exclusive dealing.
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6. » For an order granting permanent injunctive relief requiring Mi'crosoﬁ.‘ for a period -
of ten years, to disclose to Caldera all APIs for any operating system it produces. as well as any
modifications, enhancements, updates, or new versions of such operating systems at the time that
such products are released for beta testing.

7. For an order granting permanent injunctive relief prohibiting Microsoft from
including code in any software products that has the sole or primary pﬁrpose of creating real or
perceived incompatibility between Microsoft’s products and Caldera’s products.

8. For an order granting permanent injunctive relief as may be reaéonably necessary
or appropriate to eliminéte the effects of Microsoft's violations of the antitrust laws and to
restore effective competition in the computer soﬁv;/are industry.

f """"" s - 9. For the award to plaintiff of its attorneys' fees and costs of suit.

10.  For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and equitable.

226 -

CONFIDENTIAL | | NOV00125466



DATED this 2 2% day of July. 1996,

SNOW. CHRISTENSEN & MARTINEAU

AN

Max D. Wheeler

By

Stephen 7. Hill

%J

Ry E. Tibbitts '

Attorneys for Plaintiff
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